York Town Board Meeting June 25, 2015

Present: Supervisor Gerald L. Deming, Council Members: Lynn Parnell, Norman Gates, David Deuel and Frank Rose Jr.

Absent: None

Others: Henry Fuller, Dustin Geiger, Patricia Gardner and George Worden (High. Supt.)

Supervisor Deming opened the Town Board Meeting at 7:32 p.m. and invited Councilman Deuel to lead in the Pledge of Allegiance.

MINUTES

RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Gates and seconded by Mr. Rose to approve the minutes of the June 11th Town Board Meeting. Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0.

*Clerk Harris commented at the June 11th Town Board Meeting, Mr. Richenberg referenced that the York Fire Department Audit document he submitted at a previous meeting was not added to the minutes and questioned why. Ms. Harris stated when Mr. Richenberg gave the copy to the Board he stated that he wanted each board member to review such document, but did not express that he also wanted it into the minutes. Clerk Harris stated she had hoped Mr. Richenberg would be in attendance this evening to apologize for the confusion, and commented if the Board wants the entire document scanned into the minutes she will certainly comply.

The Board agreed the audit document is public record and did not have an issue with its inclusion.

Taxpayers' Guides to Audits Division of Local Government and School Amountability

Audits of Local Governments and School Districts

York Fire Department — Controls Over Financial Activities (2014M-112)

Released: July 18, 2014 --

[read complete report - pdfl

Purpose of Audit

The purpose of our audit was to examine the recording and reporting of the Department's financial activity for the period January 1, 2012 through October 30, 2013.

Background

The York Fire Department is located in the Town of York in Livingston County. The Department contracts with the Town to provide fire protection and rescue operations_ The Department is governed by a five-member Board of Directors. The Department's revenues and expenses for the 2013 fiscal year totaled approximately \$213,000 and \$138,000 respectively.

Key Findings

- The Board has not adopted a code of ethics.
- The Board did not require that the Treasurer provide an annual financial report to the members.
- The Board did not review or approve bills before they were paid.

Key Recommendations

- Adopt a code of ethics as required by law.
- Provide annual reports to the membership as required in the Department's bylaws and by statute.
- Review and approve all bills and claims before they are paid.

Local Government and School Accountability Contact Information:

Phone: (518) 474-4037; Email: localgov@osc.state_ny.us

Address: Office of the State Comptroller, Division of Local Government and School Accountability 110 State Street, 12th Floor; Albany, NY 12236



THOMAS P. DiNAPOLI COMPTROLLER

STATE OF NEW YORK OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER

1 10 STATE STREET ALBANY, NEW YORK 12236 GABRIEL F. DEW)
DEPUTY COMPTROLLER
DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT
AND SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY
Tel: (518) 474-4037 Fax: (518) 486-6479

July 18, 2014

Carl Peter, Chairman Members of the Board York Fire Department P.O. Box 92 Retsof, NY 14539

Report Number: 2014M-112

Dear Mr. Peter and Members of the Board:

The Office of the State Comptroller works to identify areas where fire department officials can improve their operations and provide guidance and services that will assist them in making those improvements. Our goals arc to develop and promote short-term and long-term strategies to enable and encourage fire department officials to reduce costs, improve service delivery and account for and protect their entity's assets.

In accordance with these goals, we conducted an audit of the York Fire Department (Department) which addressed the following question:

• Are Department controls adequate to ensure that financial activity is properly recorded and reported and that Department moneys are safeguarded?

We discussed the findings and recommendations with Department officials and considered their comments in preparing this report. The Department's response is attached to this report in Appendix A. Department officials generally agreed with the recommendations and indicated they have initiated or plan to initiate corrective action.

Background and Methodology

The York Fire Department (Department) was established in 2007 and provides fire protection and rescue operations to the Town of York, as contracted by the Town. The Department's primary sources of revenue are its fire protection contract with the Town and donations from taxpayers. The Department's revenues and expenses for the 2013 fiscal year totaled approximately \$213,000 and \$138,000, respectively.

The Department operates in accordance with its Department bylaws (bylaws), and is governed by a five-member Board of Directors (Board). The Board is responsible for the overall financial management of Department operations. The Department's members elect a Treasurer who is responsible for most financial duties, including receiving and disbursing funds, maintaining

accounting records, and preparing financial reports. The elected Assistant Treasurer is responsible for assisting the Treasurer and preparing bank reconciliations.

We examined the internal controls over the Department's financial operations from January 1, 2012 through October 30, 2013. We interviewed Department officials and reviewed financial records and meeting minutes. We conducted this performance audit in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objective. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objective.

Audit Results

The Board is responsible for overseeing and managing the Department's financial operations and safeguarding its resources. To fulfill this duty, it is essential that the Board establish a system of internal controls over financial operations. This system should consist of adequate policies and procedures that ensure all transactions are authorized, properly recorded and accurately reported in a timely manner. The Department is also required by General Municipal Law (GML) to adopt a written code of ethics to set forth standards of reasonably expected conduct.' In addition, the Board should monitor compliance with its bylaws and policies, as well as applicable laws, rules and regulations to ensure the Department is complying with all legal requirements.

The Treasurer should maintain complete and accurate records to account for all of the Department's financial activities and report on these activities monthly to the Board.² The Treasurer and Board should prepare and submit annual reports to the membership.³ These reports are important fiscal tools which provide the membership and Directors with information necessary to monitor the Department's financial activities. The bylaws require the Board to examine, audit and approve all of the Department's books and records. The bylaws also require the books to be audited by an independent public accountant before a new Treasurer takes office. Additionally, GML requires the Board to obtain an independent audit of the Department's records when annual revenues exceed \$200,000.⁴ According to the bylaws, no bills shall be paid by the Treasurer unless authorized by the Board. In addition, the Board should review and approve bills prior to payment to ensure that all disbursements are supported by appropriate documentation and that Department funds are used for legitimate Department expenditures. This review is especially important where there is a lack of segregation of financial duties.

We found that the Board generally does not provide adequate oversight of the Department's financial activities. The Board did not adopt financial policies and procedures addressing cash receipts and disbursements, procurement, or claims processing and review, and has not adopted a

GML Section 209-ee requires that a fire company that contracts with, or is under the control of, a municipality or fire district must adopt a code of ethics.

² Bylaws require the Treasurer to report to the Board monthly on receipts, disbursements and account balances, as well as provide a statement of assets and liabilities.

Bylaws require the Treasurer to make an itemized statement of receipts and disbursements at the annual meeting of the membership in December. Additionally, Not-For-Profit Corporation Law requires that a Directors' report be presented at, and entered into the minutes of, the annual meeting of the members; it must detail the Department's assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

⁴ This law was amended to increase the revenue threshold to \$300,000, effective for the 2013 fiscal year.

written code of ethics. Although the bylaws specifically detail the Board's responsibilities and the Treasurer's duties, these guidelines alone do not adequately segregate their duties or ensure that the Board monitors financial activities. Further, the Board did not require the Treasurer to provide it with adequate monthly reports that included receipt, asset and liability information. The Board also did not require that the Treasurer provide an annual financial report to the members, in accordance with the bylaws. Further, the Board did not present the statutorily required Directors' report to the membership at the annual meeting.

In addition, we found no evidence that the Board annually audited and approved all of the Department's books and records, as required by the bylaws. Furthermore, in 2012, the Board did not obtain an independent audit of the 2011 records, which was required by GML because 2011 revenues exceeded \$200,000. The bylaws also required an audit because a new Treasurer took office in 2011. Lastly, there was no evidence that the Board reviewed and approved bills before they were paid. The Board's inadequate oversight exposes the Department to increased risk that errors and irregularities could occur and not be detected and corrected in a timely manner.

Due to these deficiencies, we reviewed all bank statement activity and examined all 440 check disbursements totaling \$377,990 that were made from January 1, 2012 through July 31, 2013. We found that 47 disbursements totaling \$162,134 did not have adequate supporting documentation. These payments appeared to be for legitimate Department purposes. For example, six transfers totaling \$141,385 were made to the Department's savings accounts for future building and equipment expenditures but did not have documented Board authorizations for the transfers. Other examples included claims for: startup cash for fund raisers (\$16,170), services provided by other fire departments (\$514) and dues to various fire associations (\$225). In addition, we reviewed bank reconciliations⁵ for the Department's three accounts, verified they were reasonable and identified no unusual activity. We also tested all deposits made from January 1, 2012 through July 31, 2013 totaling \$396,303 and confirmed that moneys collected from fundraising events and donations were properly recorded and deposited. We discussed other minor deficiencies with Department officials during the conduct of our fieldwork.

The Board's failure to develop and adopt policies and procedures, its inadequate oversight of financial records and reports and its failure to ensure that disbursements were properly supported limit its ability to monitor operations and ensure that Department moneys are appropriately spent.

⁵ December 2012 (year-end) and July 2013 (most recent)

Recommendations

- 1. The Board should adopt written policies and procedures that establish a strong system of internal controls over **the** Department's financial operations.
- 2. The Board should adopt a code of ethics as required by law.
- 3. The Treasurer should provide adequate monthly reports to the Board including all financial information required in the bylaws.
- 4. The Treasurer and Board should provide annual reports to the membership as required in the Department's bylaws and by statute.
- 5. The Board should audit and approve all of the Department's books and records as required by the bylaws and should engage an independent accountant to audit the Treasurer's records when required by the bylaws and GML.
- 6. The Board should review and approve all bills and claims before they are paid to ensure they are properly supported. Board members should document their approval for payment.

The Board has the responsibility to initiate corrective action. A written corrective action plan (CAP) that addresses the findings and recommendations in this report should be prepared and forwarded to our office within 90 days. For more information on preparing and filing your CAP, please refer to our brochure, *Responding to an OSC Audit Report*, which you received with the draft audit report. We encourage the Board to make this plan available for public review.

We thank the officials and staff of the York Fire Department for the courtesies and cooperation extended to our auditors during this audit.

Sincerely,

Gabriel F. Deyo

APPENDIX A

RESPONSE FROM DEPARTMENT OFFICIALS The

Department officials' response to this audit can be found on the following page.



York Fire Department P. O. Box 92 -Retsof; New York 14339

Established 2007

Office of the State Comptroller

16 West Main St. Suite 522

Rochester, NY 14614

To: Chief Examiner- NYS Comptroller's Office

Although we dispute the wording that we do not have adequate over site of the financial records of the dept., we do acknowledge a better written policy and procedure for financial dealings would be beneficial to the dept. to ensure present and future personnel in these positions understand and review our duties. We have already adopted a comprehensive policy and procedure document that addresses many of these issues, specifically the ethics policy. We will be working toward specific procedures for both the Board of Directors and the Treasurer to follow so there will be a better written record of all department funds.

Respectfully,

Carl A. Peter, Chairman- Board of Directors York Fire Department, Inc.

HIGHWAY REPORT

Mr. Worden reported the following:

- Department has been oil and stoning parts of Craig, Anderson and York Road East
- Still contending with pipe issues due to excessive rainfall (crossovers)
- Mowing cemeteries, parks and roadsides
- The Department will be assisting next Tuesday (June 30th) with set up for the 4th of July fireworks celebration at York School
- Our department has been assisting other towns when needed and will benefit from their help when we require it (shared services)
- One of our full-time employees was on vacation this week and one part-time employee was off as well for bereavement
- We may be a bit behind on roadside mowing, not unlike many towns, but working diligently to maintain
- The State roadsides are getting very high and need to be mowed. Mr. Worden mowed some intersections for better visibility, but we hope that the State will be mowing their portion prior to July 4th.

WATER/SEWER REPORT

Mr. Worden updated the Board on the Water/Sewer department activities:

- Water meters have been read for July cycle, bills will be mailed out shortly.
- Parts list for McVean Road has been received from Clark Patterson Lee, we will be ordering material next week.
- We have experienced issues in the Retsof hamlet with large amounts of rainfall, (3) homes specifically have had drainage problems as a result. Per Clark Patterson, if we dig up by the curb and put in a check valve this should rectify the matter. Mr. Worden added, he hopes to line up a camera to view the line in order to verify that no other issues may be occurring.
 - The Town Board may want to consider adding wording to the existing policy, to include check valves.

Mr. Deuel asked if check valves should be added to every house, which Mr. Worden suggested on all new sewer tap applications. Mr. Worden stated by including such wording it gives the Town additional insurance going forward. Mr. Worden reported normally the plant runs smoothly, but again due to the rainfall, our existing (2) 10 inch pipes flow into (1) 10 inch pipe and have had a very difficult time keeping up, too much infiltration.

Supervisor Deming added with the rains from last year and the ongoing storms this year we are seeking funding assistance from FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency). Councilman Deuel asked how many residents in the hamlet of Retsof have issues, Mr. Worden replied three routinely, and Supervisor Deming added, but only occurring on one side of the road. Mr. Worden stated

once the camera is inserted, it will reflect a lot of information, and then we can obtain a recommendation for the engineers on how to proceed.

The Board stated once Mr. Worden prepares the necessary wording regarding sewer check valves, we will then officially adopt into the existing policy.

OLD BUSINESS

1) Planning Board:

Supervisor Deming reported at the last meeting the Board tabled the Russo discussion, with the hopes of meeting with the Planning Board for further input. The next Planning Board meeting is slated for Tuesday, July 14th at 7:00 p.m., and will include Mr. Russo's request. All Town Board members are urged to attend.

NEW BUSINESS

- 1) Water Tap Applications
 - a- Aaron and Meghan Rodwell:

RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Gates and seconded by Mr. Deuel to approve the Water Tap Application submitted by Meghan and Aaron Rodwell for property located at 1735 McKenzie Road. Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0.

**Tap fee was waived due to the fact, PM&A Contracting installed (3) taps for Paul and Donna Sullivan in November of 2001. One tap was used by the Sullivans, while two taps were vacant lots (now owned by the Rodwells).

b- Mia and Chris Kellogg:

RESOLUTION offered by Mrs. Parnell and seconded by Mr. Gates to approve the Water tap application submitted by Mia and Chris Kellogg for property located at 2666 Dow Road, pending dedication of the existing water line from Art Bernecker to the Town of York. Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0.

**Tap fee was waived due to the fact Mr. Bernecker has already paid for the water line and 10 taps.

OTHER

1) Union Correspondence:

Supervisor Deming indicated he received a letter from the Union requesting that the Town begin negotiations. Mr. Deming stated that our Highway Department and Water/Sewer employees are represented by the Union. The current contract will expire December 31, 2015. Supervisor Deming and Councilman Rose will be the Town's representatives for Union negotiations.

7:45 p.m. – Supervisor Deming requested a 5 minute recess in order for all Board members to view the upcoming claims to be paid.

2) I.R.G:

Mrs. Gardner reported that Davies Nagel will be at the July 9th meeting to make a presentation to the Board as to the I.R.G's status. Supervisor Deming stated he was aware of it, Mr. Nagel emailed him earlier in the week to inquire about Privileges.

BILLS

RESOLUTION offered by Mrs. Parnell and seconded by Mr. Deuel to approve all claims brought before the Board. Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0.

•	General Fund	#193-202	\$ 30,030.95
•	Joint Water/Sewer	#145-155	\$ 4,996.20
•	Youth Fund Claim	#10	\$ 85.00
•	Highway Fund Claim	#118-124	\$ 15,875.92

ADJOURNMENT

RESOLUTION offered by Mr. Gates and seconded by Mr. Deuel to adjourn the Town Board Meeting until July 9th. Voted on and approved, Yes-5, No-0.

Town Board Meeting closed at 7:52 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Christine M. Harris, Clerk